
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY June 4, 2024
Meeting Start Time:  9:30 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Stillwater Building
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108

Billings, MT
9:15 a.m. Agenda Setting 

           

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS

 

1. FINANCE  

Notice of Public Hearing for FY24-25 Budget - Public Hearings will be held Monday, June 24,
2024 at 1:30 and continue through 5:00 p.m. Thursday, June 27, 2024 in Room 3108

 

 

2. PUBLIC WORKS  

Resolution 24-96 for Public Hearing on Possible Sale of Charles Russell Park in the Frontier
Subdivision
 

 

CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. CLERK AND RECORDER  

Plat of 2 Stroke and Tutus Subdivision and the S.I.A.
 

 

2. COMMISSIONERS  

a. Board Reappointments - Rob Schessler to Laurel Fire District #5/ Robby Badgett to Broadview
Cemetery Board/ Pam Hofferber to Adult Resource Alliance/ Judy Goldsby to Laurel
City/County Planning Board/ Peggy Mcsweyn to Shepherd Cemetery Board 

 

b. Board Openings - Updated List 
 

 

3. FINANCE  

a. ARPA Project Tracking Sheet Update  
b. Finance Contract with Hardy Construction for the County Admin Building Temporary Wall and

Door
 

c. Bond for Lost Warrant  
d. Metra Request to Expend for Ticket Booth for Gate 1  



e. Metra Contract Addendum #1 with Republic Services for Solid Waste Disposal  
f. Metra ARPA Arena Indoor Sewer Lines Contract with Star Services  
g. Certification Regarding Lobbying

 
 

4. PUBLIC WORKS  

a. Request for Qualifications - DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING and
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  for Lockwood Sidewalk Project

 

b. Invitation for Bid 56th & Hesper Roundabout
 

 

5. SHERIFF  

Maintenance/Service/Support Agreement between YCDF & CML Security for Period
7/1/24-6/30/25
 

 

6. TREASURER  

Abatement of Property Taxes Delinquent for Five or More Years
 

 

7. HUMAN RESOURCES  

a. Stealth Partner Group, LLC Agreement  
b. PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - Sheriff's Office - 2 Appointments; County Attorney - 1

Appointment; Metra - 1 Appointment
 

 

 FILE ITEMS 

1. CLERK AND RECORDER  

Board Minutes - Yellowstone Conservation District Minutes July 2018 to May 2024
 

 

2. COMMISSIONERS  

a. Support Letter - Crisis Diversion Grant  
b. Billings Bypass Highway Easement Parcel No. 7-38

 
 

3. FINANCE  

MetraPark Budget Adjustment-FY24
 

 

4. PUBLIC WORKS  

Contract with Wright Company MT, Inc. for Weed Spraying for River Ranch Retreat RSID
806M 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Notice of Public Hearings FY25 Budget
Submitted For:  Jennifer Jones, Finance Director  Submitted By: Juli Bjornebo

TOPIC:
Notice of Public Hearing for FY24-25 Budget - Public Hearings will be held Monday, June 24, 2024 at
1:30 and continue through 5:00 p.m. Thursday, June 27, 2024 in Room 3108

 

BACKGROUND:
Notice of Public Hearing FY24-25 Budget

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Publish

Attachments
Notice of Public Hearing 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Resolution for Public Hearing on Possible Sale of Charles Russell Park in the Frontier

Subdivision
Submitted For:  Monica Plecker  Submitted By: Monica Plecker

TOPIC:
Resolution 24-96 for Public Hearing on Possible Sale of Charles Russell Park in the Frontier Subdivision
 

BACKGROUND:
On June 19, 2024, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners shall hold a public hearing on the
possible sale of Charles Russell Park in the Frontier Subdivision at a public auction.  If the Board approved the
Resolution, the hearing will be noticed publicly, landowners within the Frontier Subdivision will be notified. The
Resolution sets the hearing. The hearing provides the BOCC with an opportunity to hear from th residents affected
by the potential sale. The BOCC should consider the testimony in determining if it wishes to move forward with the
next steps of the sale process.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Resolution setting the Public Hearing

Attachments
Resolution 24-96 





















   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: 2 Stroke and Tutus Subdivision
Submitted For:  Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder 
Submitted By: Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder

TOPIC:
Plat of 2 Stroke and Tutus Subdivision and the S.I.A.
 

BACKGROUND:
Reviewed.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments
2 Stroke and Tutus SIA 



















   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Board Reappointments
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Reappointments - Rob Schessler to Laurel Fire District #5/ Robby Badgett to Broadview Cemetery
Board/ Pam Hofferber to Adult Resource Alliance/ Judy Goldsby to Laurel City/County Planning Board/
Peggy Mcsweyn to Shepherd Cemetery Board 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachments

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign and Mail 

Attachments
Rob Schessler 
Robby Badgett 
Pam Hofferber 
Judy Goldsby 
Peggy Mcsweyn 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Board Openings
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Openings - Updated List 
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Post 

Attachments
Board Openings 



 

June 4, 2024 

AREA II AGENCY ON AGING  1 year                   1 partial to 6/30/24 

 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #7  3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

WORDEN FIRE DISTRICT #4 3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #5 3 year             1 full to 5/4/27 

LOCKWOOD URBAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 4 year             2 full to 5/2/28 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, July 4, 2024 

 

May 21, 2024 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 3 2 year 1 partial to 12/31/24 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 4 2 year 1 partial to 12/31/24 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live AND own property within 

the boundaries of the district. To find which planning district you live in, please contact the City/County 

Planning Division at 247-8676. 

 

LAUREL URBAN FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 

                     1 partial to 6/30/25 

                     1 partial to 6/30/26 

                     1 full to 6/30/27 

BROADVIEW CEMETERY 3 year                      1 partial to 6/30/26 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own property within the 

boundaries of the district. 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 2 year                    1 full to 12/31/25 

 NOTE: Eligible applicants for the above board must have professional expertise in history, planning, 

archaeology, architecture, or historic preservation-related disciplines. 

 

LOCKWOOD PEDESTRIAN SAFETY DISTRICT ADV. 3 year 
             2 full to 12/31/26 

                  1 partial to 12/31/24 
                  1 partial to 12/31/25 

YOUTH SERVICES CENTER 2 year               3 full to 12/31/25 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, June 20, 2024 

 

FUEGO FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 1 partial to 12/31/25 

BLUE CREEK FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 2 full to 5/8/27 

 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: ARPA Project Tracking Sheet Update
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
ARPA Project Tracking Sheet Update

BACKGROUND:
ARPA Project Tracking Sheet Update

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
ARPA Project Tracking Sheet - through 5.30.24 



ARPA Projects

UPDATED: 5/30/2024

Predicted 

Expenditures

Cash @ 7.1.21 15,665,317.00$     

Revenue rec'd 6/10/22 15,665,317.00        

LATC Funds rec'd 12/20/22 A101 #104900 / 7/31/23 A101 #109225 125,781.82             88,428.32                  Remaining LATC Funds to spend

COB Water Main Repl. Share A101 #109669 8/23/23 245,657.00             

Expended to date (17,103,791.53)      

Cash @ 5/30/24 14,598,281.29        

Remaining Budgeted Projects w/o Contingency (14,450,383.90)      

Left to Expend/ Assign 147,897.39$           

Name Discussion Budget Expended

Predicted 

Remaining Exp.

Funds left to 

Allocate

Explanation for 

Variance Details

Contract? 

(Y/N)

Expenditure 

Category

1

IAQ (indoor air quality) upgrades - HEPA Filtration 

(Original anticipated budget was $4,000,000) 5/27/21, 7/12/21

4/13/22: $1.5M to Replace Air-Handler & ADD UV units - ($550K just to add UV Units)  on First Interstate Arena, Expo Center, and 

Pavilion Building - for public safety; 4/11/23 -Project Kickoff meeting Friday April 14th 7 a.m. Metra; 5/15/23 - Propane tanks that were 

expected in November- Now arriving 5-24-23,  Coordinated with Metra Staff to accommodate 4 trucks & a crane to offload in Propane 

area; Added shut off switch for Arena HVAC ($25K); 06/05/23 - Propane Tank arrived and set, Pavilion & Expo HVAC Filters upgrade 

Completed - Arena expected to be completed end of June Y (Eng.)

1.4 - Prevention in 

Congregate Settings

(COMBINED WITH IAQ PROJECT)

  -  Propane-air standby facility (Original Budget was 

$2,500,000.00) 5/27/21, 7/12/21 3,100,000.00$     (1,354,661.43)$       (74,000.00)$           1,671,338.57$     

 Deduct REPLACING 

ALL Roof Top AHU - 

Declined by BOCC 

 $1.5-$2.5 million, Propane-air standby facility to heat First Interstate Arena in case of gas disruption; 4/11/23 -Project Kickoff meeting 

Friday April 14th 7 a.m. Metra; 5/15/23 - Propane tanks that were expected in November- Now arriving 5-24-23,  Coordinated with 

Metra Staff to accommodate 4 trucks & a crane to offload in Propane area; Added shut off switch for Arena HVAC ($25K); 6/5/23 - 

Propane Tank arrived and set, Pavilion & Expo HVAC Filters upgrade Completed - Arena expected to be completed end of June; 6/22/23- 

CO #1 for HVAC Switches signed -  Tanks are prime painted; 7/20/23- Change Order #2 to add metal mesh Economizer screen filters to 

replace old & defective screens $5,300.00; 01/08/2024- Tanks completed & Filled with Propane; new mixing equipment installed - LP 

gas system is operational-  testing & training is being scheduled; Equipment enclosure completed soon; Substantial completion - 

enclosure completed, punch list for final pay app Y

1.4 - Prevention in 

Congregate Settings

Digital screens/ public address system

In First Interstate Arena to allow evacuation notices and other public safety announcements for attendees to see/hear; 1/12/23 - AVI 

was able to arrive on site and the Arena speaker center cluster was completed on 01/11/23; working to complete remaining speakers, 

found several clusters that are bypassed and not working (due to dust?)  working to resolve those issues; 1/26/23 - During 

Commissioning tests, it was found that 3 amplifiers are in dire shape. The amps are now enclosed in a newly built Data Room, however 

30+ years of dirt and dust are causing failures, they are completely plugged with particulate fines, and will need to be sent out for 

complete overhaul. 5/15/23 - Speaker Final Commission Success. COMPLETED

1.7-Other COVID-19 

Public Health Expenses

  -  PA System 

5/27/21, 7/12/21 500,000.00$        (305,604.85)$          -$                        194,395.15$        

 DEDUCT - Did not 

replace 186 Sub-

Woofers in original 

budget 

2/15/23  Amplifiers reported as Beyond Economical Repair, and suggested to purchase new amps;  2/24/23 -Quotes due from AVI &  

DIA Events March 1st; 3/29/23 Final testing/ inspection & commissioning;  3/29/23 Final Testing/ Inspection & Commissioning;  

COMPLETED Y

1.7-Other COVID-19 

Public Health Expenses

  -  Arena Security system & Parking Lot 

5/27/21, 7/12/21 1,750,000.00$     (1,134,518.33)$       -$                        615,481.67$        

 Deducted Data 

Cables and 

extensive number of 

drops proposed for 

Expo & Pavilion  

 1/25/23 - ARENA PROJECT COMPLETE - Work will now concentrate on Pavilion & EXPO;  2/23/23 - A/C & doors week of 2/27 will be 

completed - Cameras for Expo/Pavilion/VIP Parking on order  - New Data Rooms in progress- Expo construction completed; Cabling & 

Electrical beginning- Pavilion construction beginning after MATE Show; 2/24/23-  Masonry walls in Pavilion & Expo completed; 3/3/23; 

Data Closets in Expo & Pavilion will be completed next week - doors, locks & painting starting Monday;  3/24/23- data cabling complete 

up to data rooms, server racks going in this week, Camera installation expected to begin April 3rd;  3/20/23 - Working around trade 

shows, causing a few minor delays(still on schedule)  Cameras have arrived for Pavilion & Expo, ready for completion of Data Rooms, 

Final inspection and walk-through scheduled for March 24th, electrical & mini-splits to be complete; 4/3/23  Data Rooms Construction 

Complete- punch list to finalize; 4/28/23- Security Cameras are being installed in Expo & Pavilion as well as the VIP Lot; 5/15/23- Expo 

cameras installed, working on Pavilion; VIP lot camera install completed;  All cameras installed and tested and online; 7/20/23 Project 

Completed

Y

1.7-Other COVID-19 

Public Health Expenses 

(including 

Communications, 

Enforcement, 

Isolation/Quarantine)

  -  LED Video Display/Signage 

5/27/21, 7/12/21 2,200,000.00$     (1,442,076.20)$       -$                        757,923.80$        

 Bids came in 

substantially below 

original estimates 

LED: =$946,000+$250,000 C.T Arch, Ace Elect. Tel-Net & Owners Rep Fees-est. $250K; 6/15/22: Addendum: Conduit & Wiring + 

$46,000.00; Directive #1  BOCC Approved - metal caps for tops of signs = Not to Exceed $25K; 8/11/22 LED Screens 90% complete, 

missing 5 control units lost in transport, Arena signs on & functioning; programming taking place; 9/1/22 - LED's are 98% done; Last 

pallet of modules arrived this week- will complete next week; 10/4/22 ARENA LED Project Complete; 10/14/22 complete operations 

manual (513 pgs) delivered to Metra staff, USB of manual supplied to Staff & IT; 10/14-10/22 no activities due to NILE event; 11/4/22 

Project complete Y

1.7-Other COVID-19 

Public Health Expenses

3

Sewer, Water, and Power infrastructure upgrades 

(Original Budget was $14,509,546.00) 5/27/21, 7/12/21

Upgrades on the campus to allow continued use of the facility for evacuation locations and other emergency uses; Plans & Design for 

Arena Sanitary Sewer Improvements beginning,  Project will repair existing system to operate and originally designed however it is 

undersized.  To improve, 2nd and 3rd Floor systems will be separated, and the largest wastewater producing areas routed to the new 

system and leave the smaller producers to the existing smaller system, thus improving flow on all levels.  Lower level system will be 

properly cleaned, and trimmed to their original size and lined due to poor condition of the existing mains Y

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

1/3



Name Discussion Budget Expended

Predicted 

Remaining Exp.

Funds left to 

Allocate

Explanation for 

Variance Details

Contract? 

(Y/N)

Expenditure 

Category

PROJECT #1 OF 6 –  VIP PREMIUM LOT  (COMPLETED) 1,500,000.00$     (872,827.23)$          -$                        627,172.77$        

 Reduced #  of 

Security Cameras & 

bids came in under 

estimates 

          & ARENA PARKING LOT ISLANDS (COMPLETED) 62,537.00$          (27,210.00)$            -$                        35,327.00$          Est vs. Bid

PROJECT #2 OF 6 - LOWER LOT (PAVILION & EXPO)   

OUTSIDE SEWER LINES; CARNIVAL RV LOT 8,900,000.00$     (6,868,729.42)$       (53,456.25)$           1,977,814.33$     

City Participation 

and value 

engineering

10/13/2023 ARENA LOT-  new water lines installed, data cable & Electrical conduit installed-Arena lot leveled and prepped for asphalt-

concrete curbing expected to be completed by 10/27/23 - asphalt paving expected 10/30/23; Punchlist/closeout on 3/19/24

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

PROJECT #3 OF 6 - ARENA LOT & RIDESHARE

BID = $2,178,344.00 less exclusion of vault  ($528,000.00) 

+ C.O.s 60,860.52 = $1,711,979.52 3,750,000.00$     (1,503,059.57)$       (138,453.00)$         2,108,487.43$     

Bids came in below 

original estimates 

and removed Vault 

replacement

6/22/23-Bid Due for PROJECT 3 - ARENA LOT & RIDE SHARE on 6/26/23, Released on 6/6/23 (Engineers Est. $1,995,000.00); PROJECT 

ESTIMATE -  $4,500,000.00; 7/20/23 Pre-project planning and site walk-through; 8/17/23 - Reducing Scope to exclude Concrete Vault 

Repair (-$528,000.00); 8/24/2023- Pre-Construction Meeting on-site; 9/14/23- Project started - stripping asphalt from Arena Lot- to be 

re-used for Back-Lot RV Parking- Addendum- Safety Fencing around project to block patrons from accessing const. area; 10/16/23  

Change Order #1 deduct ($527,225.00) for Sidewalk Vault repair- ADD $13,409.52 for grouting rock bank next to upper lot stairs- ADD 

$22,007.00 Addt'l conduit from arena thru tunnel to VIP Ticket booth- ADD  Temporary Safety Fencing around Arena Lot for Public 

Safety $3,8943.00 - Potential C/O's for additional concrete/asphalt in ADA area, and new Light Pole. New project total $1,850,000.00; 

11/27/2023- Project 90% complete, Pavement & Concrete near completion, Lot striping completed. 01/08/2024-  Lot competed - 

punchlist items being corrected; 1/8/24 Lot completed, punchlist items being corrected.

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

PROJECT #4 OF 6 - ARENA - INDOOR SEWER LINES 700,000.00$        (116,841.78)$          (282,500.00)$         300,658.22$        

Arena West sewer 

lines now need 

replacing add $20k; 

domestic water 

improvements for 

Arena add $189k

$686,000.00 Estimated Project Total; Additional Mechanical Engineering needs to be done before releasing for bid;   Intended bid date 

10/10/23; 5/15/23 - C.O.B. Vac'd  Alkali Creek drainage effluent, allowing run-off; 4/11/23- Effluent clogged - notify C.O.B; 11/27/23  

Project Scope of Work to be reduced, as testing & scoping the lines show water lines are in good shape and will not need to be 

replaced.  Contractors will concentrate efforts on plumbing issues.  Expect significant cost savings; 1/08/24- Inspections and scoping 

completed- Contract not to exceed $75,000.00 awarded to G&T Plumbing for repair & upgrades to Arena sewer lines; 2/14/24 Pay App 

#1 G&T Plumbing $23,546.66 (contract $70k); 4/18/24 Arena East side sewer line complete. Arena West sewer lines in bad shape, 

unforeseen circumstances. Line will need to be replaced, quote to replace is $20k. Additional $70k to complete project; 5/21/24 

Domestic Water Improvements for Arena; Replace domestic water heater with high efficiency water heater,  2 verticle hot water 

storage tanks, backflow preventor, insulation and temp controls. $189,000.00

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

PROJECT #5 OF 6 - ARENA BACK LOTS / RV LOTS 

(ELECTRICAL, WATER, SANITARY SEWER, ROCK SCALING, 

SCARFING ROCK LEDGE, WEB CABLE NETTING) 5,500,000.00$     (1,631,544.01)$       (3,868,455.99)$      -$                      

11/27/23  presentation to BOCC for anticipated Scope of Work, split into three areas, with Base Bid for Back of Arena Access Road, and 

Lot 3 (portable stalls) road improvement,  Arena Back Lot Reconstruction, asphalt replacement behind & West side of Expo pavement 

around lake. Expected to include scaling the rock escarpment beside and behind Arena.   Alternative # 1 is for water & sewer for the 

Carnival Lot RV camping area and to resurface it with new asphalt paving.  Alternative #2 is for water & sewer to  Lot 3B back lot 

camping area.; 01/08/2024 Engineers briefed Commissioners on Project- being released as a base bid, with Two Alternatives - Carnival 

RV Lot Improvements & Lower Lot Improvements PROJECT ESTIMATE -  $5,500,000.00 (ASKIN = $3,755,566.00     +   WWC   $385,000.00   

+   Hulteng  $185,000.0  +   Terracon   $150,000.00  +   Contingency  = $5,475,566.00); 2/21/24 Askin Bid $3,755,602

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

PROJECT #6 OF 6 - SOUTH EXPO LOT - WATER SERVICE 

LINES 2/29/2024 1,350,000.00$     (37,353.50)$            (1,332,452.50)$      (19,806.00)$         Partially funded with LATC Funds; Replacing Water service lines

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

4

Lockwood TEDD - Engineering Costs 

(Original Budget was $556,000.00) 5/27/21, 7/12/21 756,000.00$        (548,032.33)$          (207,967.67)$         -$                      Water & Sewer extension - Engineering costs Y

5.18- Water and Sewer: 

Other

5 YWCA 8/5/21, 3/31/22 200,000.00$        (200,000.00)$          -$                        -$                      Building project

2.34-Assistance to 

Impacted Nonprofit 

Organizations 

(Impacted or 

Disproportionately 

Impacted)

6 Huntley Water & Sewer 10/26/2021 25,000.00$          (25,000.00)$            -$                        -$                      Approved by 2 BOCC contingent on competitive grant approval by State  

7.2-Transfers to Other 

Units of Government

7 Kart Kleen N/A 53,850.00$          (53,850.00)$            -$                        -$                      Decontamination equipment for YCDF and Patrol

1.5-Personal Protective 

Equipment

2/3



Name Discussion Budget Expended

Predicted 

Remaining Exp.

Funds left to 

Allocate

Explanation for 

Variance Details

Contract? 

(Y/N)

Expenditure 

Category

8 LUX Electrostatic Cleaner N/A 1,702.00$            (1,702.00)$              -$                        -$                      Backpack sprayer for YSC

1.4-Prevention in 

Congregate Settings

9 Temperature Scanner N/A 2,907.00$            (2,907.00)$              -$                        -$                      3 body temperature scanners for YCDF

1.4-Prevention in 

Congregate Settings

10 County Attorney 10/26/2021 1,000,000.00$     (946,901.51)$          (53,098.49)$           -$                      To address increased crime, court case backlogs, and extended pre-trial or pre-revocation hearing status of defendants in YCAO

3.4-Public Sector 

Capacity: Effective 

Service Delivery

11 Remote Learning Wifi and Cabling YSC N/A 13,583.49$          (13,583.49)$            -$                        -$                      

1.7-Other COVID-19 

Public Health Expenses

12 VTC Equip for Justice Court N/A 2,388.88$            (2,388.88)$              -$                        -$                      New VTC equipment for JC to connect to YCDF for arraignments. 

1.7-Other COVID-19 

Public Health Expenses

13 EXTENSION / 4H HVAC SYSTEM 240,000.00$        -$                        (240,000.00)$         -$                      

6.1-Provision of 

Government Services

14 County Admin/Miller Building - HVAC/Plumbing 3,200,000.00$     (15,000.00)$            (3,200,000.00)$      (15,000.00)$         

6.1-Provision of 

Government Services

15 Short Term Jail 5,000,000.00$     (5,000,000.00)$      -$                      

6.1-Provision of 

Government Services

Contingency 1,973,000.00$     1,973,000.00$     

3/3



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. b.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Finance Contract with Hardy Construction for County Administration Building Temporary

Wall & Door
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Finance Contract with Hardy Construction for the County Admin Building Temporary Wall and Door

BACKGROUND:
Hardy Construction will provide all labor & materials necessary for a preparation project in the
Yellowstone County Administration Building. The project will include building a temporary wall and
doorway in the main floor lobby, and installation of a doorway in a masonry wall on the lower floor
necessary for contractor utility access. The cost of the project is $21,195.00 utilizing general fund Capital
Outlay Building funds (4050.000.599.411200.920)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Finance Contract Hardy Const. C.A.B. Lobby Wall & Basement Door 















   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. c.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Bond for Lost Warrant
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
Bond for Lost Warrant

BACKGROUND:
Bond for Lost Warrant on lost check

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve reissue

Attachments
Bond for Lost Warrant 



BOND FOR LOST WARRANT 


On April 23, 2024 Yellowstone County issued a warrant numbered 526599 to 
Minuteman Press (Principal) in the amount of $334 .39 . The warrant was drawn 
in payment of PO #588337 (Invoice #2102) . Principal now attests that the warrant 
has been lost or destroyed, and it has undertaken a diligent search but has been unable to recover 
the warrant. Moreover, Principal has not received payment on the claim. Therefore , Principal has 
requested that Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant in the same sum of $334.39 to 
replace the lost or destroyed warrant. 

WHEREFORE, Principal agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone County and its officers 
from all loss, costs, or damages incurred as a result of issuing the duplicate warrant, should 
Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant, and agrees to release any and all claims that principal 
may have against Yellowstone County now or in the future as related to payment of the above stated 
claim . Principal also agrees to pay to any person entitled to rece ive payment under the original 
warrant, as the lawful holder of the original warrant, all monies received upon the duplicate warrant. 

Further, Principal agrees to bind itself, its heirs, assigns, executors administrators, successors and 
assigns, jointly and severally, for twice the amount of the original warrant as required by M.C.A. 7-7­
2104 (2), which is $ 668.78 and may be enforced in the event the Principal cashes both the 
original warrant and the replacement warrant. In addition, Principa l agrees to pay reasonable 
attorney's fees, and to cover all losses, damages, and other costs incurred by Yellowstone County in 
enforcing its rights under this bond . 

~ 

City, State . 

SUBSCRIBED .AND SWORN to before me on 

[Complete the follow ing if not part of stamp] 
Notary public or the State of --::cM"'-'----:\-'--------­
County of e..~ f)Q 

Resid ing at ~.c.'....,\ L!.:~"""'~>"rT-=---=------'::---
My Commission expir s ---''-'''''''''''--'-''<!'Oo!!O'''----L__ 

APPROVED: 


Chair, Board of County Commissioners Date 


CINDY J. PETERSON 
NOTARY PUBLIC for tfle 

State of Montana 
Residing at Billings, Montana 

My Commission Expires 
September 20. 2027 

Notary Signat r 

4/27/23Replaced with warrant #_____(completed by County) 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. d.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Metra Request to Expend - Ticket Booth for Gate 1
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Metra Request to Expend for Ticket Booth for Gate 1

BACKGROUND:
MetraPark is requesting Commissioner's approval for the purchase of a new ticket booth for Lot 1.  The
existing booth is in need of repairs that are beyond economical repair.  Three quotes were received with
Guardian Booth LLC submitting the lowest cost of $15,125.00 delivered to Metra.  Booth is a 6 X 6
weather resistant aluminum framing, double layer insulated pre-painted galvanized panel exterior,
Insulated, access door, diamond floor plate, visibility windows on 3 sides with forkliftable base frame.  The
purchase was not anticipated, however there is sufficient authority within the Metra Facilities - Capital
Outlay Equipment (5811.000.552.460442.940)  to facilitate the purchase.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
Metra RTE Ticket Booth 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. e.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Metra Contract Addendum #1 with Republic Services for Solid Waste Disposal
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Metra Contract Addendum #1 with Republic Services for Solid Waste Disposal

BACKGROUND:
Original contract was signed on June 15th, 2021 providing all labor, materials, equipment and permits
necessary to collect and dispose of solid waste at MetaPark.  Addendum #1 is an annual rate
agreement from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2027.  Year one pricing is included as Yellowstone County
- Metra Pricing.  Rates for the following years will be determined by the CPI (water, sewer, trash) rolling
12-month average, which is in line with the current contract.  New rates will be effective July 1st, 2024.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra Contract Addendum #1 Republic Services 2024 - Republic Services 









   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. f.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Metra ARPA Arena Indoor Sewer Lines - Star Service Domestic Water Improvements
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Metra ARPA Arena Indoor Sewer Lines Contract with Star Services

BACKGROUND:
Metra ARPA Indoor Sewer Lines, contract for Arena domestic water improvements with Star Service. 
The project is to replace the domestic water heater with a high efficiency water heater, install 2 vertical
hot water storage tanks, a backflow preventer, added insulation and temperature controls. The cost for
the replacement is $97,890.00.  The replacement and code updates will be included on the Metra ARPA
Infrastructure Indoor Sewer Lines and remain within budget (2260.000.199.440150.930).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra ARPA Indoor Sewer Lines - Domestic Water 
Metra Domestic Water-Engineers Recommendation 



































































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. g.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Certification Regarding Lobbying - EDA Grant
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
Certification Regarding Lobbying
 

BACKGROUND:
Certification Regarding Lobbying - for EDA Grant on Lockwood TEDD Water/Sewer Service Extension
Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign

Attachments
Form CD-512 Certification Regarding Lobbying - EDA Grant 



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Applicants should review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form.  Signature
on this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 28, “New Restrictions on Lobbying.”

LOBBYING
As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and
implemented at 15 CFR Part 28, for persons entering into a grant,
cooperative agreement or contract over $100,000 or a loan or loan
guarantee over $150,000 as defined at 15 CFR Part 28, Sections
28.105 and 28.110, the applicant certifies that to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:

(1)  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid,
by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member  of Congress in connection with the awarding of any
Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
 agreement.

(2)  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been
paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form-LLL, ‘‘Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,’’
in accordance with its instructions.

(3)  The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at
all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S.
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure occurring on or before
October 23, 1996, and of not less than $11,000 and not more
than $110,000 for each such failure occurring after October 23,
1996.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance
The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge
and belief, that:

In any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this commitment providing for the United
States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, ‘‘Disclosure Form
to Report Lobbying,’’ in accordance with its instructions.

Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title
31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required state-
ment shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure occurring
on or before October 23, 1996, and of not less than $11,000
and not more than $110,000 for each such failure occurring
after October 23, 1996.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the
above applicable certification.

NAME OF APPLICANT                                                                                  AWARD NUMBER AND/OR PROJECT NAME

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

SIGNATURE                                                                                               DATE

FORM CD-512
(REV 12-04)

 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. a.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Request for Qualifications - DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING and

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT for Lockwood Sidewalk Project
Submitted By: Monica Plecker

TOPIC:
Request for Qualifications - DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING and CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT  for Lockwood Sidewalk Project

BACKGROUND:
The Public Works Department of Yellowstone County, Montana is requiring the services of a competent Engineering
Consultant to provide Design, Construction Engineering and Construction Management for the Lockwood Sidewalk
Project. The Scope of Work includes providing survey, design, environmental documentation and review,
construction engineering and construction management for the Lockwood Sidewalk Project. The County will utilize
the selected consultant(s) or individual(s) for the duration of the project. The Lockwood Sidewalk Project is more
specifically referred to as the Old Hardin Road Connector that will address the gap in sidewalk facilities between
Woodland Road and Rykken Circle. This is approximately 2,200 feet. The conceptual design contemplates a 6’ wide
boulevard sidewalk. The intent of the design will maintain all existing driveways and street approaches. This project
is federally funded through the Transportation Alternatives program. The project is being administered locally by
Yellowstone County, but must be coordinated through the Montana Department of Transportation. This project is
subject MDT’s Local Agency Guidelines. To be considered for this Work, all Proposals must be received, and date
stamped no later than June 24th, 2024 at 4:00PM at the above address. Late submittals will not be considered. All
timely submittals will be acknowledged at 9:30 a.m. June 25th, 2024 in the Commissioners Board Room, Room 3108,
located on the third (3rd) floor of the Stillwater Building.

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments
RFQ 



@BCL@48125906 Page 1 of 7

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING and CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
Servicesfor the Lockwood Sidewalk Project

June 2024



@BCL@48125906 Page 2 of 7

Article I. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING and CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  Services for 
the Lockwood Sidewalk Project

The Public Works Department of Yellowstone County, Montana, (the “County”), is 
requiring the services of a competent Engineering Consultant to provide Design, 
Construction Engineering and Construction Management  for the Lockwood Sidewalk 
Project

The County will utilize the selected consultant(s) or individual(s) for the duration of the 
project. The County will negotiate the agreement and payment terms with the selected 
offeror.

SUBMITTAL OF INFORMATION:

Three (3) hard copies of each RFQ must be placed in a sealed package. The package must be
clearly marked RFQ. The written response to this Proposal must follow submittal instructions,
and be received at:

Board of County Commissioners Stillwater Building
Room 3101
216 North 26th Street Billings, MT 59101

NOTE: CAREFULLY READ SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS. The separate RFQ responses will be
placed together in a single, sealed package.

All questions regarding this Request must be submitted in writing (Email/facsimile acceptable)
to:

Public Works Department Sti l lwater  Bu i ld ing
Attention: Monica Plecker
316 North 26th Street
Room 3201
P.O. Box 35024 Billings, MT 59101
mplecker@yellowstonecountymt.gov
406-245-7946 (fax)



@BCL@48125906 Page 3 of 7

To be considered for this Work, all Proposals must be received, and date stamped no later 
than June 24th, 2024 at 4:00PM at the above address. Late submittals will not be considered.

All timely submittals will be acknowledged at 9:30 a.m. June 25th, 2024 in the Commissioners 
Board Room, Room 3108, located on the third (3rd) floor of the Stillwater Building.  All Proposals 
received that are time date stamped later than June 24th, 2024 4:00 p.m. will not be opened.

The costs for developing and delivering responses to this RFQ and any subsequent
presentations of the proposal as requested by the County are entirely the responsibility of the
offeror. The County is not liable for any expense incurred by the offeror in the preparation and
presentation of their proposal or any other costs incurred by the offeror prior to execution of a
contract. All materials submitted become the property of the County.

SCOPE OF WORK
Provide survey, design, environmental documentation and review, construction engineering 
and construction management for the Lockwood Sidewalk Project. The County will utilize the 
selected consultant(s) or individual(s) for the duration of the project. 

The Lockwood Sidewalk Project is more specifically referred to as the Old Hardin Road 
Connector that will address the gap in sidewalk facilities between Woodland Road and Rykken 
Circle. This is approximately 2,200 feet. The conceptual design contemplates a 6’ wide 
boulevard sidewalk. The intent of the design will maintain all existing driveways and street 
approaches. 

You can review the Transportation Alternatives application which includes conceptual designs: 
https://www.yellowstonecountymt.gov/publicworks/Forms/Yellowstone_County_Lockwood_TA
_Grant_Application.pdf

PROJECT FUNDING
This project is federally funded through the Transportation Alternatives program. The project is 
being administered locally by Yellowstone County, but must be coordinated through the 
Montana Department of Transportation. This project is subject MDT’s Local Agency Guidelines 
which can be found here: Local Project Administration | Montana Department of 
Transportation (MDT) (mt.gov)

The consultant will be required to follow the activities flowchart found here: Federal Aid 
Local Project Administration Preliminary Engineering Flowchart (mt.gov)

INDIRECT COST RATE REQUIREMENTS
Proof of the firm’s Indirect Cost Rate (overhead rate) is not required with this proposal submittal.  
However, an Indirect Cost Rate may be required prior to executing a contract according to MDT’s 
Indirect Cost Rate Requirements:

All submitted indirect cost rates must be calculated in accordance with 23 CFR 172 for the cost
principles of 48 CFR part 31 and include the required items identified in the MDT Indirect Cost



@BCL@48125906 Page 4 of 7

Rate Policy located in Appendix A of the Consultant Services Manual on the MDT Internet
website.

http://www.mdt.mt.gov/other/webdata/external/cdb/consultant_manual/consultant-design-
manual_combined.pdf

Do not show any actual numerical financial information such as the overhead rate or 
personnel rates within your proposal.  Specific cost information of the firm or team should not 
be part of the proposal.

AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS

Contract agreements will generally be administered on a cost plus fixed fee basis. The contracts 
will have negotiated cost ceilings. If a consulting firm is selected for a specific project and a
contract agreement is successfully negotiated, certain financial information will be required as 
part of the contract agreement. As described in the Indirect Cost Rate Requirements section 
above, all Consultants and subconsultants must provide the County with an Indirect Cost Rate 
(as applicable) audited (when applicable) in accordance with 23 CFR 172 for the cost principles 
of 48 CFR Part 31 and based on the firm’s latest completed fiscal year’s costs. Personnel rates, 
profit, and direct expenses must be clearly outlined and provided to the County. The standard 
MDT agreement can be found at the following address:
http://www.mdt.mt.gov/other/webdata/external/cdb/forms/pdf/General-Terms-and-
Conditions.pdf

Do not submit actual numerical financial information within this proposal.

SELECTION PROCEDURE
The County intends to evaluate and award a contract for the project without conducting
discussions. However, the County reserves the right to conduct discussions if determined by
the County to be in the best interest of the County at any time leading up to contract award.

EVALUATION
The evaluation of Consultants’ proposals may include, but is not limited to, the following
criteria:
∑ Consultant’s experience with sidewalk projects.
∑ Availability (timetable)for completion of the scope of work.
∑ Past performance on Yellowstone County contracts.

EVALUATION CRITERIA
The proposals being requested will be scored on the following criteria:

Qualifications and Ability to Perform Requested Services (100 Points Total)
Montana professional engineering licensure is required for this work and must be in-hand at 
the time your proposal is submitted. If this requirement is not met and clearly identified in 
the proposal, your proposal will be considered non-responsive.
∑ Staff Qualifications 30



@BCL@48125906 Page 5 of 7

Points
∑ Past Experience and Performance on Transportation Alternatives Projects 30

Points
∑ Proposal Methodology and Approach 40 Points

Total Points 100 points



@BCL@48125906 Page 6 of 7

Article II. APPLICABLE STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND POLICIES.
Work is expected to follow MDT’s various Manuals, Guides, and Policies.  These items may be 
found on MDT’s Design Consulting web page at:  http://www.mdt.mt.gov/business/consulting/ .

Article III. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
The Contractor must, in performance of work under this contract, fully comply with all
applicable federal, state or local laws, rules, and regulations, including the Montana Human
Rights Act, Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and the American with
Disabilities Act of 1990. Any subletting or subcontracting by the Contractor subjects
Subcontractors to the same provisions. In accordance with Section 49-3-207, MCA, the
Contractor agrees that the hiring of persons to perform the contract will be made on the basis
of merit and qualifications and there will be no discrimination based upon race,
color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or
national origin by the persons performing under the contract.

Article IV. INSURANCE – WORK ON A COUNTY FACILITY
The Consultant shall, at its own expense, provide and maintain during the entire performance
of this contract, at least the kinds and minimum amounts of insurance required in the Schedule 
or elsewhere in the contract.

Before commencing work under this contract, the Consultant shall notify the County in writing
that the required insurance has been obtained. The Consultant shall insert the substance of 
this clause, including this paragraph, in Subcontracts under this contract that require work on
a County installation and shall require Subcontractors to provide and maintain the insurance
required in the Schedule or elsewhere in the contract. The Consultant shall maintain a copy of
all subcontractors' proofs of required insurance and shall make copies available to the County
upon request.

Consultant shall carry the following insurance and shall provide the County with certificates
verifying coverage for the f o l l o w i n g :

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
The following insurance coverage must be in force throughout the project. Coverage may be 
obtained through either a general liability policy or excess liability umbrella coverage. 

General Liability
Commercial General Liability – General Aggregate $2,000,000
Products-Comp OP AGG $2,000,000

Occurrence – Personal & Adv Injury $1,000,000
Each Occurrence $1,000,000

Fire Damage (any one fire) $100,000
Med Exp (any one person) $5,000

Automobile Liability (hired and non-owned autos) $1,000,000



@BCL@48125906 Page 7 of 7

Worker’s Compensation
State Statutory
Federal Statutory
Employer’s Liability $500,000

Article V. INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS
Proposals Must:

1. Follow the format outlined in the Selection Procedure, above.

2. Be signed by an officer or principal of your firm.

3. Be contained in a document not to exceed four (4) pages total (single- or double-
sided printing is acceptable) including whatever pictures, charts, graphs, tables, and
text the firm deems appropriate to be part of the review of the firm's qualifications.
A separate transmittal letter, cover page, cover sheets, sample schedules, and
dividers are exempted from the page limit. The page size is limited to 8.5 x 11
inches, with basic text information reasonably legible.

4. Include a proposed project schedule, which does not count toward the page limit.

End of this Request for Qualifications

Done by order of the Board of County Commissioners of Yellowstone County, Montana, this 4th

day of June, 2024.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

John Ostlund, Chairman
(Seal)
Attest:

Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. b.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: IFB 56th & Hesper Roundabout 
Submitted For:  Tim Miller, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Tim Miller, Public Works Director

TOPIC:
Invitation for Bid 56th & Hesper Roundabout
 

BACKGROUND:
Invitation for bid for the construction of a traffic roundabout at the intersection of 56th & Hesper to improve
safety and traffic flow.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Invitation for Bid

Attachments
Bids 



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

1

INVITATION TO BID
YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA

56TH ST WEST AND HESPER RD ROUNDABOUT

Yellowstone County will receive sealed bids for the 56th St West and Hesper Rd 
Roundabout project (herein after “project”) per the enclosed specifications until 
4:00 PM on June 24, 2024.  All bids must be submitted in triplicate (1 original and 
2 copies) to the Board of County Commissioners, P.O. Box 35000, Billings, MT
59107 or delivered to their office in the Stillwater Building, Room 3101, 316 North
26th Street, Billings, MT 59101. Envelopes containing bids must be marked “56th 
St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout” in the lower right-hand corner.

All Bids received will be time and date stamped. The time and date stamped on 
each bid must indicate that it was received no later than 5:00 PM on June 24, 2024. 

All timely bids will be opened and read aloud at 9:30 AM on June 25, 2024 in the 
Commissioners Board Room, Room 3108, located on the third floor of the Stillwater 
Building 316 North 26th Street. All bids received that are time and date stamped 
later than 4:00 PM on June 24, 2024 will not be opened.

All bids must include a bid bond made in favor of Yellowstone County in an amount 
equal to 10% of the total bid.  The security may consist of cash, a cashier's check, a 
certified check, a bank money order, a certificate of deposit, a money market 
certificate, or a bank draft.  The security must be: a) drawn and issued by a federally 
chartered or state chartered bank or savings and loan association that is insured by 
or for which insurance is administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; 
b) drawn and issued by a credit union insured by the National Credit Union Share 
Insurance Fund c) a bid bond or bonds, original only, no copies, executed by a 
surety company authorized to do business in the State of Montana.  Personal 
checks, business checks, and facsimiles will not be accepted for bid security.

No bid may be withdrawn prior to sixty (60) days after the scheduled time for receipt 
of the bids.

Each bidder must have a current Montana Public Contractor’s Registration 
number when submitting their bid.  The number must appear on the bid.  All 
subcontractors, if any, must obtain a registration number prior to beginning any 
work on the project. Bid-only registrations are acceptable for the bidding process.

All contractors and subcontractors performing work pertaining to the construction, 
reconstruction, or improvement of any public road, street, or intersection, or a 
bridge construction repair or maintenance project awarded by any government 
agency, must obtain and maintain a Special Fuel User Permit from the Montana 
Department of Transportation.



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

2

The successful bidder will be required to provide the County with a performance 
bond and labor and materials bond, both for 100% of the contract amount, within 
ten (10) days of the execution of the contract and prior to starting any work on the 
project. The selected Contractor will also be required to provide a copy of their 
commercial liability insurance certificate and workers compensation coverage 
prior to beginning the project.

The successful bidder will be required to follow all the directives included in 
section 18-2-422 of the Montana Code Annotated concerning Montana Prevailing 
Wages. Those directives are as follows:

(1)  the contractor and any subcontractors are required to pay the standard 
prevailing wage rate, including fringe benefits, for each job classification as stated 
in the current prevailing wage rate schedules. This information is included in the 
four (4) prevailing wage rate schedules that are being provided to each bidder as 
part of this bid package.  The current schedules are also available at the State of 
Montana web-site (https://erd.dli.mt.gov/labor-standards/state-prevailing-wage-
rates/). It is the responsibility of the contractors to obtain and use the applicable 
Wage Rate Schedules.
(2)  each contractor and subcontractor is required to maintain payroll records in a 
manner readily capable of being certified for submission under statute 18-2-423, 
for not less than three (3) years after the contractor’s and subcontractor’s 
completion of work on the project;
(3)  each contractor is required to post a statement of all wages and fringe benefits 
in compliance with statute 18-2-423.

Statute 18-2-423 is as follows: If a complaint is filed with the department alleging 
noncompliance with 18-2-422, the department may require the project to submit to 
it certified copies of the payroll records for workers employed on that project.  A 
contractor or a subcontractor shall pay employees receiving an hourly wage on a 
weekly basis. If a wage violation complaint is filed with the department, the 
contractor or subcontractor shall provide the employee’s payroll records to the 
department within 5 days of receiving the payroll request from the department.

The successful bidder will be required to give preference to the employment of 
bona fide Montana residents in the performance of the work on this project.

All state laws pertaining to Resident Bidders, both State and County will be adhered 
to if applicable.

A 5% retainage fee will be withheld from all progress payments made to the 
successful bidder. The fee will be returned to the contractor upon completion of 
the project and acceptance of the project by the County. The successful bidder will 
be required to pay the State of Montana a sum equal to 1% of the gross receipts 
from the public contract. The County will withhold this amount and forward it to the 
State of Montana.



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

3

The Contractor must, in performance of work under this contract, fully comply with 
all applicable federal, state or local laws, rules, regulations, including the Montana 
Human Rights Act, Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
and the American with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any subletting or subcontracting 
by the Contractor subjects subcontractors to the same provisions.  In accordance 
with section 49-3-207, MCA, the Contractor agrees that the hiring of persons to 
perform the contract will be made on the basis of merit and qualifications and there 
will be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, 
sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by the 
persons performing under the contract.

Requests for information relating to the bid package (plans and specifications)
should be addressed to Seth Neuhoff of Sanderson Stewart at (406) 656-5255.  
Questions concerning the bid procedure may be addressed to James Matteson of 
Yellowstone County at (406) 256-2717.     

The Board of County Commissioners will award the project to the lowest and/or the
best responsible bidder.  The Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids 
received, to waive informalities to evaluate the bids submitted, and to accept the bid 
which best serves the interests of Yellowstone County. 

Done by order of the Board of County Commissioners of Yellowstone County, MT 
this 4th day of June, 2024.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

__________________________   
(Seal) John Ostlund, Chair
Attest:

_________________________________
Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

4

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The successful bidder (herein after “Contractor”) shall maintain, at its sole cost and 
expense, commercial general liability insurance naming Yellowstone 
County/Yellowstone County Public Works as additional insured for this project 
against liability for damages for bodily injury, including death and completed 
operations and property damages in a minimum amount of Seven Hundred Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($750,000.00) for each claim and One Million Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00) in the aggregate arising from incidents which 
occur as the result of Contractors negligence during the project and for which 
Yellowstone County/Yellowstone County Public Works sole basis of liability is 
vicarious liability for the acts or omissions of the Contractor or/and subcontractors.  
Contractor shall maintain for this project, at its cost and expense, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, including contractual 
liability which may arise from or in connection with the project by Contractor, 
agents, employees, representatives, assigns and sub-contractors.  This insurance 
shall cover claims as may be caused by any negligent act or omission.  The policy 
of insurance shall be an occurrence policy with a Best Rating of A- or better and 
must be in force throughout the project.

Contractor shall name on the Certificate of Liability Insurance Yellowstone 
County/Yellowstone County Public Works as additional insured throughout the 
project.  In addition, Contractor will furnish to Yellowstone County a copy of the 
policy endorsement, CG 32 87 05 10, indicating that Yellowstone 
County/Yellowstone County Public Works are named as an additional insured 
under the Contractors insurance policy for this project.  Contractor agrees to 
furnish both the Certificate of Insurance and policy endorsement at least ten (10) 
days prior to beginning work on the project.

Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone County 
/Yellowstone County Public Works from and against any and all claims demands, 
obligations causes of action, lawsuits and all damages and liabilities fines, 
judgments, costs, (including settlement costs), and expenses associated therewith 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements), arising from incidents 
that occur from the result of Contractor negligence during this project and for
which Yellowstone County/Yellowstone County Public Works’ sole basis of liability 
is vicarious liability for the acts or omissions of Contractor.  The defense and 
indemnification obligations under this paragraph of the Invitation to Bid shall not be 
limited by any assertions or finding that Yellowstone County/Yellowstone County 
Public Works is liable for any damages by reason of a non-delegable duty.   

WORKERS COMPENSATION

Contractor is required to maintain workers compensation insurance, or an 
independent contractor’s exemption issued by the Montana Department of Labor 
covering Contractor and Contractor’s employees.  Contractor is not, nor are 
Contractor’s workers, employees of Yellowstone County / Yellowstone County 



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

5

Public Works.  Workers Compensation insurance, or the exemption from the 
workers compensation obligation must be valid for the entire period of the 
project. 



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

6

CHECK LIST 

Please be sure you have completed the following prior to submitting your bid:  

1.) Read and understand the specifications and bid procedure.
2.) Enclose the required ten (10) percent bid bond.
3.) Make yourself familiar with any State or County laws that pertain to this bid.
4.) Ask and receive answers to any questions regarding the bid procedure, bid 

package (plans and specifications), or of a general nature.
5.) Address and mail or deliver by hand your bid to be received at the correct 

address by the time and date indicated in the Invitation to Bid.  

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Yellowstone County Public Works Department is currently requesting bids for 
the 56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout project.

The following is a description of the project with key details:

The primary purpose of the project is to construct a single-lane roundabout at the 
intersection of 56th St West and Hesper Rd. The associated roadway 
improvements will extend approximately 500 feet along each leg from the center of 
the intersection.  Curb and gutter will be installed along the roadway shoulders in 
the roundabout and for varying distances each leg of the intersection. Where curb 
and gutter is not needed, 4-ft paved shoulders will be constructed. Within the 
roundabout circle, there is a landscaped central island, a (colored and stamped) 9-
inch thick concrete truck apron with 2-ft spill curb and gutter at the top and a 1-ft 
mountable curb at the bottom, and asphalt circulating lanes.  On each leg of the 
intersection, there are splitter island medians consisting of 1-ft concrete pin-down
curb with a 3-inch thick concrete cap (over a crushed aggregate course). The 
standard asphalt paving section in all locations is 5 inches of asphalt (PG 70-28, 
Type B-Modified) to be installed in 2 lifts over 7 inches of 1-1/2 inch minus crushed 
base course. In all locations where the roadway is being widened compared to the 
existing roadway footprint, the standard pavement section is to be underlain with 2 
feet of 3-inch minus sub-base course material as specified in the bid package.

All intersecting private approaches with paving shall be paved to a setback 
distance as shown in the contract plans. Unpaved private approaches shall be 
extended (blended back) to tie to the existing surfaces to provide a smooth driving 
surface with minimal grade breaks.

Roadway/intersection striping and pavement markings shall be of epoxy paint to 
provide enhanced durability. Various signs are to be removed and/or relocated 
and there are several new sign and (telespar) post installations to be made as 
shown in the plans.



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

7

There are no pedestrian-related improvements being installed with this project, 
either at the intersection or adjacent to the intersection legs.  Intersection lighting 
will be installed, consisting of a 12 LED luminaires on 40-ft poles with 15-ft mast 
arms.

Existing drainage and/or irrigation culverts will be replaced.  Ditch alignments will 
be re-routed around the intersection and addition culverts will be installed where 
berms are necessary for foundation stabilization at streetlight locations.  It may be 
necessary to temporarily re-route active irrigation ditches to install culverts or 
make other modifications.  It will be the responsibility of the Contractor coordinate 
with ditch companies and users regarding any interruptions to irrigation service 
that may be required.

A construction traffic control plan(s) is required and must be submitted by the 
Contractor to Seth Neuhoff of Sanderson Stewart for review and approval a 
minimum of one (1) calendar week prior to when the associated traffic control 
measures would be implemented.  Full closure of the intersection and associated 
roadway segments will be allowed for the duration of the project (through 
substantial completion), but the Contractor shall make very effort to minimize the 
overall length of the roadway closure to avoid extended impacts to the traveling 
public.  Signed detour routes must be provided and accounted for in the traffic 
control plan.

All work must meet the Montana Public Works Standard Specifications
requirements. SK Geotechnical will be performing materials testing services on 
behalf of the County and the Engineer.  The contract duration is 75 calendar days 
from notice to proceed (NTP) to award of substantial completion. Final completion 
must be awarded within 30 calendar days after the date of substantial completion.
All labor and material used during the course of the project must be warranted for 
a period of one (1) year after acceptance by Yellowstone County.

Any questions concerning this project should be directed to Seth Neuhoff, 
Consultant Project Manager with Sanderson Stewart at (406) 656-5255.



56th St West and Hesper Rd Roundabout
File:  @BCL@FC2F5D22

8

56TH ST WEST AND HESPER ROAD ROUNDABOUT
BID SHEET

To: Yellowstone County Commissioners
PO Box 35000
Billings, MT 59107-5000

THE UNDERSIGNED BIDDER, having familiarized himself/herself with the work 
required by the bid documents, the site(s) where the work is to be performed, local 
labor conditions, and all laws, regulations, and other factors affecting performance 
of the work, and having satisfied himself/herself of the expense and difficulties 
attending performance of the work,

HEREBY PROPOSES and agrees, if this bid is accepted, to perform all work,
including the assumption of all obligations, duties, and responsibilities necessary to 
the successful completion of the work and the furnishing of all labor, materials and 
equipment, supplies, permits, bonds, insurance for the total bid of:

Words Figures

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER 

COMPANY 

ADDRESS 

CITY, STATE 

PHONE NUMBER 

MONTANA PUBLIC CONTRACTORS’ REGISTRATION NUMBER 

DATE 

I acknowledge receiving the following addenda, if applicable.

#1 #2 
Initials Date Initials Date



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: YCDF-CML Security Maintenance Agreement
Submitted By: Carol Redler

TOPIC:
Maintenance/Service/Support Agreement between YCDF & CML Security for Period 7/1/24-6/30/25
 

BACKGROUND:
Renewal of existing annual agreement.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consent & sign.

Attachments
YCDF-CML FY25 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Abatement of Property Taxes Delinquent for Five or More Years
Submitted For:  Marci Shafer, Treasurer  Submitted By: Hank Peters

TOPIC:
Abatement of Property Taxes Delinquent for Five or More Years
 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Abatement List 



















































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 7. a.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Stealth Partner Group, LLC Agreement
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Stealth Partner Group, LLC Agreement 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Stealth Partner Group LLC Agreement 































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 7. b.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - Sheriff's Office - 2 Appointments; County Attorney - 1
Appointment; Metra - 1 Appointment
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 
PARS1 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - Yellowstone Conservation District Minutes July 2018 to May 2024
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Yellowstone Conservation District Minutes 























































































































































































































































































































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Support Letter - Crisis Diversion Grant 
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Support Letter - Crisis Diversion Grant 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File 

Attachments
Support Letter 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Billings Bypass Highway Easement
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Billings Bypass Highway Easement Parcel No. 7-38
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Billings Bypass Highway Easement 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: MetraPark Budget Adjustment FY24
Submitted For:  Jennifer Jones, Finance Director  Submitted By: Juli Bjornebo

TOPIC:
MetraPark Budget Adjustment-FY24
 

BACKGROUND:
Budget transfer within the parameters of Policy #23-18 are needed for the purchase of a QuickBooks
subscription. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File.

Attachments
QB 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 06/04/2024  
Title: Weed Spraying for River Ranch Retreat
Submitted For:  Tim Miller, Public Works Director  Submitted By: Alexis Hellman

TOPIC:
Contract with Wright Company MT, Inc. for Weed Spraying for River Ranch Retreat RSID 806M 
 

BACKGROUND:
see attachment

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Weed Spraying for River Ranch Retreat 










	Agenda
	AI 13243 Notice of Public Hearings FY25 Budget
	       ATT_Notice of Public Hearing
	AI 13447 Resolution for Public Hearing on Possible Sale of Charles Russell Park in the Frontier Subdivision
	       ATT_Resolution 24-96
	AI 13458 2 Stroke and Tutus Subdivision
	       ATT_2 Stroke and Tutus SIA
	AI 13439 Board Reappointments
	       ATT_Rob Schessler
	       ATT_Robby Badgett 
	       ATT_Pam Hofferber 
	       ATT_Judy Goldsby 
	       ATT_Peggy Mcsweyn
	AI 13457 Board Openings
	       ATT_Board Openings
	AI 13430 ARPA Project Tracking Sheet Update
	       ATT_ARPA Project Tracking Sheet - through 5.30.24
	AI 13440 Finance Contract with Hardy Construction for County Administration Building Temporary Wall & Door
	       ATT_Finance Contract Hardy Const.  C.A.B. Lobby Wall and Basement Door
	AI 13443 Bond for Lost Warrant
	       ATT_Bond for Lost Warrant
	AI 13448 Metra Request to Expend - Ticket Booth for Gate 1
	       ATT_Metra RTE Ticket Booth
	AI 13454 Metra Contract Addendum #1 with Republic Services for Solid Waste Disposal
	       ATT_Metra Contract Addendum _1 Republic Services 2024 - Republic Services
	AI 13455 Metra ARPA Arena Indoor Sewer Lines - Star Service Domestic Water Improvements
	       ATT_Metra ARPA Indoor Sewer Lines - Domestic Water 
	       ATT_Metra Domestic Water-Engineers Recommendation
	AI 13459 Certification Regarding Lobbying - EDA Grant
	       ATT_Form CD-512 Certification Regarding Lobbying - EDA Grant
	AI 13442 Request for Qualifications - DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING and CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  for Lockwood Sidewalk Project
	       ATT_RFQ
	AI 13462 IFB 56th & Hesper Roundabout 
	       ATT_Bids
	AI 13456 YCDF-CML Security Maintenance Agreement
	       ATT_YCDF-CML FY25
	AI 13445 Abatement of Property Taxes Delinquent for Five or More Years
	       ATT_Abatement List
	AI 13464 Stealth Partner Group, LLC Agreement
	       ATT_Stealth Partner Group LLC Agreement
	AI 13461 PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	       ATT_PARS1
	AI 13467 Board Minutes
	       ATT_Yellowstone Conservation District Minutes
	AI 13453 Support Letter - Crisis Diversion Grant 
	       ATT_Support Letter
	AI 13463 Billings Bypass Highway Easement
	       ATT_Billings Bypass Highway Easement
	AI 13452 MetraPark Budget Adjustment FY24
	       ATT_QB
	AI 13438 Weed Spraying for River Ranch Retreat
	       ATT_Weed Spraying for River Ranch Retreat

